
Questions on Career Bridge Program RFP from the Pre-Submittal Conference held on 2/12/13:
Question 1. The RFP says that the City is seeking a consultant.  Does this mean that the City prefers a single consultant rather than a firm or other organization?  I anticipate applying as an independent consultant, not a legally registered firm or business entity.  What kind of documentation should I submit?  I am assuming that I can submit a response as an individual independent consultant.
Answer 1.  A firm or other organization is acceptable.  An individual or team may also apply.


Question 2. Is the City Registration System (pg. 11) the same as the “Consultant Roster”? Do staff (other than the contractor her/himself) need to register with the City Registration System?  
Answer 2.  The City Registration System is not the same as registering for the Consultant Roster.  Staff of a business or organization (such as a University or consulting firm) do not need to register separately unless they are operating as an independent consultant, and not as an employee of the organization.

Question 3. Does a firm need to register with the City Registration System?  If so, how is this done? 

Answer 3.  A firm does need to register with the City. To register with the City Registration System, use this link— http://www2.ci.seattle.wa.us/Consultantregistration/default.asp—and follow the instructions.  For assistance call 206-684-0444.
Question 4. Please explain the required procedure for “proof of legal name.”  

Answer 4.  Proof of legal name.  Businesses, organizations, or individuals responding to this RFP must be registered in the state in which they reside.  Generally the Secretary of State will have the legal business name on file, accessible through the web site of the Secretary of State.  The winning proposing entity must have a business license with both the State of Washington and the City of Seattle.  These can be obtained in the period between selection of the contractor and award of the contract.

Question 5. Please explain the “minimum qualifications sheet” (pg. 12).
Answer 5. Minimum Qualifications:  The minimum qualifications are described in section 4, pages 3-4, as follows:

	Minimum qualifications are required for a Consultant to be eligible to submit a RFP response.  Your submittal response must show compliance to these minimum qualifications.  Those that are not responsive to these minimum qualifications shall be rejected by the City without further consideration:

Minimum M.A. degree in sociology, economics, public health, public policy, evaluation, or a related field.

A minimum of 5 years of evaluation experience, preferably including familiarity with labor market economics, with specific experience working with transitional employment approaches for populations with multiple barriers to employment such as previous incarceration or limited English language skills. 

Demonstrated expertise and experience with community-based research and program evaluation in communities of color, immigrant, and refugee communities. 

Demonstrated experience in producing process and outcome evaluations including evaluation design, data collection, data analysis, and a final written report.

Course work in statistics and research methods and proficiency in using statistical database software.

Knowledge of assessment techniques including survey, interview, observation, and focus groups.

Excellent oral and written communication skills.




The “minimum qualifications sheet” is a document in which you describe how you and/or your team meet these minimum qualifications.  It does not need to be limited to one page, and is not counted in the maximum-10-page Proposal Response.

Question 6.  Regarding the 10 page limit for response, do all the bulleted items under Item 7 on pg. 11 need to be confined to 10 pages?  Specifically, do the resumes for the project team members need to be included in the 10 pages, or may they be submitted as an appendix or elsewhere.
Answer 6.  The resumes may be included with the statement of minimum qualifications, and will not be included in the count of the 10-page proposal.

Question 7. Is there a deadline for the Letter of Intent?

Answer 7.  The letter of interest is an optional part of the Proposal Response, which is due by 5:00 p.m. PST, March 1, 2013.

Question 8. What is the anticipated contract type (e.g., fixed price, time and materials)?
Answer 8: fixed price paid for deliverables at each phase.

Question 9. Has any evaluation been done thus far on the Career Bridge Program or the Seattle Jobs Initiative?  If so, are the evaluation reports available?

Answer 9.  The Seattle Jobs Initiative has done evaluations.  They have agreed to make all evaluations available.  I have forwarded several Seattle Jobs Initiative evaluations to the four potential respondents that have contacted me, and they are posted on the City’s web page at http://consultants.seattle.gov/2013/01/31/evaluation-of-the-career-bridge-program-rfp-oca-13013/ .  Career Bridge began in the summer of 2012.  At this point no evaluation has been completed.  However, the City’s Human Services Department has an internal evaluator on staff who is planning to do an evaluation of the program.  
Question 10. Will data be available to the contractor on activity currently taking place or already completed under the Career Bridge Program, in the specific areas of (a) costs, (b) number of persons served under the program, (c) outcomes experienced by persons served?  Would comparative data from SJI be available?
Answer 10. All data collected for the Career Bridge program will be available.  To the extent outcome data will have been gathered during the evaluation period it will be made available.  SJI data will be made available.
Question 11. The RFP (pg. 3) says that the City may be interested in a “participatory evaluation approach.”  The term “participatory evaluation” usually indicates that the subjects of the evaluation (or target persons or organizations) play a part in determining the evaluation questions, methods and process of data collection and analysis, and/or interpretation of findings.  However, “participatory evaluation” is not mentioned in the Scope of Work.   Is there a particular evaluation question or component of Career Bridge Program to which the City believes participatory evaluation would be best applied? 
Answer 11. We expect the respondents to the RFP to explain their methodology, and whether or not it includes a participatory evaluation approach. 

Question 12. Scope of Work Item 1 (pg. 4) specifies a “preliminary report on early program outcomes using data that have been collected from the cohorts that have participated in Career Bridge through June, 2013.”  How many cohorts will have participated in Career Bridge by June, 2013?  What is the size of each cohort that will have participated through June, 2013?
Answer 12.  The first cohort includes 18 participants.  An additional 5 cohorts of approximately 20 members each are expected to have been enrolled by June 2013, for a total of approximately 118 participants.

Question 13. The RFP (pg. 3) states that Career Bridge has been working with a “first cohort of 18 African-American men.”  Is this the entire size of the first cohort?”
Answer 13.  Yes, 18 is the entire size of the first cohort.

Question 14.  What is the function of the “community sponsors;” in what activities do they engage? Are they organizations or individuals?
Answer 14.  The community sponsors include both organizations and individuals.  Here is a description from the response to the City Council Statement of Legislative Intent by the Seattle Human Services Department and the Seattle Office of Economic Development, page 11:  Community sponsors and supporters are those informal networks, grassroots organizations, churches, and other groups who are on the ground to provide critical connection points to refer and support program participants.  In addition to “walking the path” with participants, community sponsors will also be enlisted to support program graduates with job connections, case management, and wrap around services.  This partnership will begin to build community capacity and the social service network needed to help individuals access, progress and complete job and training programs leading to self-sufficiency.

HSD’s response to the Statement of Legislative Intent mentions the following specific community organizations: The Men of Color Group, G.A.M.E., 4-C Coalition (http://www.the4ccoalition.org), FAVOR Seattle (a mentoring organization, according to its Facebook page), and the Urban League.
Question 15:  Do the community sponsors participate in evaluations? Do sponsors fill out forms at the beginning of their involvement as the participants do? Do you gather information about the sponsors?

Answer 15: The Seattle Jobs Initiative (SJI) collected data for the first cohort. We are not clear at this point what data (if any) was collected on the community sponsors.
Question 16:  What community based organizations are currently involved? 

Answer 16:  The response to the Statement of Legislative Intent by the Seattle Human Services Department and the Seattle Office of Economic Development mentions the following specific community organizations: The Men of Color Group, G.A.M.E., 4-C Coalition (http://www.the4ccoalition.org), FAVOR Seattle (a mentoring organization, according to its Facebook page), and the Urban League.  Additional organizations that have been participating include True Chance Society/True Vine Church and Got Green.  Regarding the longer term plan for a Community Based Development Organization we quote from the Human Services Department response to the City Council Statement of Legislative Intent, page 11: [One or more] Community Based Development Organizations (CBDO) will assume the role currently filled by SJI in program delivery and oversight for Career Bridge.  Job training, placement, and other employment services are expressly permitted activities under CDBG rules when they are carried out by an eligible CBDO.  It is anticipated that one or two CBDOs will be selected with strong linkages to communities of color and immigrant/refugee communities.  The CBDOs will be trained by SJI to directly administer the training curriculum.  OED and HSD have already begun to discuss Career Bridge with several organizations that might be able to fill the CBDO role, and an assessment of capacity and interest will begin in 2013.   

Question 17: what is the linkage between Career Bridge and SJI? 

Answer 17:  SJI conducts the 5 day training, and has been responsible for the intake data collection on the first cohort. SJI has a specific template for enrollment for any client. They were responsible for the first 18, and will continue to have a role moving forward.  At weekly stakeholder meetings, SJI is at the table along with City staff, community sponsors, and participants.  SJI is also part of the oversight committee, which consists of staff from the Seattle Human Services Department, the Seattle Office of Economic Development, and SJI staff. All come to the table as the oversight committee for Career Bridge.

Question 18: would every client of Career Bridge also be a SJI client?
Answer 18:  In the beginning stage of the program (currently) SJI is conducting the 5-day training provided to participants, and the program is using SJI’s templates for gathering information about participants. SJI is also supplying a job developer who connects Career Bridge participants with job opportunities. Clients benefit from services after the 5-day training, to identify career and job opportunities.  So in this early phase of the program each participant is a client of SJI. The ultimate goal is to make Career Bridge self-sustainable for the community.  At some point SJI would pull back and much of their current responsibility would be transferred to a community based organization.  However, successful participants will become SJI clients upon graduating from Career Bridge, and will be able to take advantage of SJI’s program that provides support for obtaining post-secondary job training and job-placement assistance.
Question 19. What is the total number of participants the program expects to serve through the end of the evaluation contract?

Answer 19.  120 through June, 2013 in six cohorts.  No cohorts will be brought on between June 2013 and December 2013.
Question 20. When will the services for the first cohort conclude?

Answer 20. No participant’s services will terminate. The current cohort has been participating in weekly meetings. Participants are encouraged to attend and receive the support offered by the group, and that level of connectedness that the meetings provide. The training is 5 days for each cohort. Then they are a graduate.  The design is that participants will remain connected and participate in the network in an ongoing sense. With the first cohort, not all participants attend every weekly meeting.
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